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MINERVA LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group and of
the Company for the year ended 30 June 2011

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Jupiter Properties 2011 UK Limited (‘Jupiter’), a company jointly owned by funds advised by AREA
Property Partners (UK) Limited ('Area’) and a subsidiary of DV4 Limited, which I1s advised by Delancey
Real Estate Asset Management Limited (‘Delancey’), acquired the entire issued share capital of Minerva
plc following the declaration that its offer was wholly unconditional on 19 August 2011 Consequently, on
19 September 2011, the listing of Minerva Shares on the Official List and the admission to trading In
Minerva Shares on the London Stock Exchange's market for listed secunties was cancelled On 17
October 2011, Minerva plc was re-registered as a private hmited company under section 97 of the
Companies Act 2006

Other post balance sheet events are disclosed in note 31 to the Accounts

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The prnincipal activities of the Group and its subsidiaries are property investment, development, sale and
management of real estate in the UK

Strategy and future developments
The Group's objective 1s to deliver attractive, long-term returns to shareholders through investment,
development, sale and management of UK real estate

The Group's strateqy is to focus on real estate opporturities where Minerva has inherent skills, such as
site assembly, planning and construction, predominantly located in Central London and relating to high-
end residential, mixed-use and office developments, working with joint venture partners where
appropnrate, and incorporating structured finance to drive returns

This strategy s being implemented through the delivery of high qualty, well located real estate and a
development pipeiine which can provide the Group with future opportunities to develop, erther solely or in
joint venture with others, whilst adhering to nsk-adjusted return discipines

Priorities to deliver further value include leasing the remaining space at The Walbrook and St Botolph
Buildings on competitive terms, the sale of the remaining apartments at the Lancaster Gate development,
and achievement and renewal of planning consent for the Ram Brewery and Odeon Kensington sites
respectively

Operational review
Progress on the Group's principal properties during the financial year 1s set out below

The Walbrook Building, London EC4
The Walbrook Building, located in the City of London, has been completed to enhanced shell and core

and 1s avallable for leasing The building provides some 410,000 sq ft of ar-conditioned offices and
storage, incorporating trading floors and 35,000 sq ft of retail and restaurant accommodation in the heart
of the City of London  The accommaodation 1s being actively marketed through leasing agents

The St Botolph Buillding, London EC3
Practical completion was achieved during the year on The St Botolph Bulding, which s located in the

eastern side of the City of London Some 45 per cent of the accommodation has been leased, with the
remaining availlable space being actively marketed through leasing agents

Minerva Limited
Company Number 2649607




MINERVA LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Lancaster Gate, London W2

The Lancasters 1s an ultra-prime residential development comprising 77 residential apartments in an
historical setting overlooking Hyde Park Construction has progressed dunng the year, with completion
scheduled for later in the calendar year Sales and pre-sales of apartments now total 75 per cent of the
available space, representing £331 millon in sales revenue {(at 30 June 2011 67 per cent and £303
mullion respectively)

Odeon Kensington, London W8

The Odeon 1s located in a prime residential area on Kensington High Street and has planning consent for
an ‘all-private’ residential scheme of around 100,000 sq ft comprising 35 apartments, five town houses, a
basement car park, multi-screen public cinema and off-site affordable housing An application to renew
the planning consent, which expires in November 2011, was submitted in July 2011

Ram Brewery, London SW18

The Ram Brewery site comprises approximately 7 acres in Wandsworth Town Centre Plans to redevelop
the site have been drawn up and were subject to a public consultation in July 2011 A planning
application for a residential led, mixed-use scheme i1s scheduled to be submitted later in the calendar year

The Croydon Estate, London Borough of Croydon

Minerva's Croydon Estate compnses approximately 6 acres i the town centre, incorporating one million
sq ft of offices, the Allders Department Store and addiional retail and leisure accommeodation The focus
in the year has been on ncome generation through progressing lettings of the retall and office space

Sale of properties
Since the beginning of 2011, non-core properties have been sold for gross consideration totalling £43 9
milion These include Leinster House Hotel, the Buckhold Road site and some penpheral City properties

Financial Results

The Group's property portfolio was valued by CB Richard Eliis Limited at 30 June 2011 at £992 3 million
{30 June 2010 £1,124 9 millon), compnsing investment properties at £749 3 million (30 June 2010
£726 8 million) and, having made disposals in the year, trading properties at £243 0 million (30 June 2010
£398 1 million) In aggregate, after adjusting for expenditure and disposals in the year, investment and
trading property valuations have increased by 6 per cent and 17 per cent respectively, with only the
investment property revaluation movement being reflected in the income statement

Profit before tax for the year, incorporating property revaluaton movements of the Group's investment
portfotio only, was £100 2 milion (2010 £69 1 million) After taxation, the Group’s profit for the year was
£92 2 milion (2010 £69 1 milhon) No dividend has been paid or declared during this financial year
(2010 £nil)

Basic net asset value per share at 30 June 2011 increased to 57 4 pence (30 June 2010 8 9 pence}
Diluted EPRA (‘EPRA’) net asset value per share, which includes the Group's share of revaluation surplus
of its trading properties and adjusts for the fair value deficit on financial instruments, increased to 148 4
pence at 30 June 2011 (30 June 2010 131 8§ pence)

Financing

The Group has a number of loan financings In place, with total committed loan faciities of approximately
£885 7 million at 30 June 2011, including undrawn loan faciities of circa £106 6 milion (30 June 2010
£139 3 million)

At 30 June 2011, loans of £416 1 milhon were due within a year Following the change of control, newly
extended loans were put in place, such that no loans are scheduled to mature in the financial year ending
30 June 2012 In addition, Jupiter Holdco (BVI) Limited provided the Company with a new facility of up to
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MINERVA LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

£40 mihon to meet costs, including those associated with the Company’s acquisition by Jupiter and the
amendment and/or extension of certain existing loan faciities

Financial instruments

Financial nsk and credit nsk management objectives and policies are set out In Note 21 to the Accounts
The Group enters into loan arrangements which expose 1t to the nsk of interest rate fluctuations The
Group addresses such nsks by purchasing interest rate hedging instruments, the fair value of which has
been recognised In the financial statements The valuation of such instruments at 30 June 2011 showed a
deficit of £75,700,639 (2010 £88,650,531)

Other performance indicators

In addition to its key financial performance indicators, basic and EPRA net asset value, the Group
monitors non-financial performance indicators which have a direct mpact on the sustainability of the
Group’s strategy Key performance indicators are

— The health and safety of employees and contractors I1s carefully monitored by the Board There was 1
reportable ncident during the financial year {2010 nil} Minerva maintains policies and procedures
which support safe working practices

— Employee retention and motivation Mmerva has successfully retaned key employees, with
employees’ average length of service at 9 5 years {2010 8 6 years)

— Reduction of energy and carbon ermussions The Group continues to reduce carbon emussions and
incorporate energy efficiency measures in its developments

The Walbrook Bullding  Projected to exceed Part L requirements by 38 per cent (2010 38 per cent)
The St Botolph Building  Projected to exceed Part L requirements by 11 per cent (2010 11 per cent)
The Lancasters EcoHomes ‘Pass’

Key risks and uncertainties
The Group’s main risks and uncertainties revolve around

- the business environment, where external economic and market forces may adversely affect the
Group's business model,

- exposure to interest rate nsk, hquidity nsk and credit nsk,

— continued avallability of funding and comphance with banking covenants,

— the property market, where speculative developments may not achieve appropnate planning
approvals and/or may suffer from poor market demand from tenants or buyers,

-~ changes in legislation, regulation or best practice, particularly in relation to planning and taxation,
which may impact the costs, timings and profitability of the Group's schemes In progress, and

- failure In corpaorate responsibility, including breaches of health and safety, environmental
regulations and planning guidelines

The Group addre‘sses these nsks through the effective implementation of its strategy and a well
developed risk and control process, which 1s monitored by the Board

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company who served during the year were as follows
Oliver Whitehead

Salmaan Hasan

Ivan Ezekiel

Tim Gamham

Damiel Kitchen

John Matthews

Martin Pexton
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MINERVA LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

On 19 August 2011, Olver Whitehead, Daniel Kitchen, John Matthews and Martin Pexton resigned and
Colin Wagman, Paul Goswell, John Robertson and Wilson Lamont were appointed as Directors of the
Company

Directors’ qualifying third party indemnity provisions

Under the provisions of its Articles of Assoaation, the Company has indemnified its Directors against
hability in respect of proceedings brought by third parties, subject to the conditions set out in the
Companies Act 2006 Such qualifying third party indemnity provision was In force throughout the financial
year and remains n force on the date of approval of the Directors’ Report

CREDITORS’ POLICY AND PRACTICE

The Group’s policy concerning the payment of its trade creditors and other suppliers 1s to set the terms of
payment with major suppliers when agreeing the terms of each transaction, ensure that suppliers are
made aware of the terms of payment by inclusion of the relevant terms in their contracts and pay all
suppliers in accordance with its contractual and other legal obligations At the year end the Group had an
average of 21 days {2010 19 days) purchases outstanding

DONATIONS
During the year the Group made no chantable or political donations (2010 £nil)

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company has a single class of share capital which 1s divided into ordinary shares of 25 pence each
Details of the Company's share capital are set out in note 24 to the Accounts The nights and obligations
that are attached to the shares are set out in the Company's Articles of Association unless specified by
law or regulation There are no restnctions on voting rnights or the transfer of shares other than as
specified by the Articles of Association, law or regulation

GOING CONCERN

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason, the Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis in prepanng the financial statements

AUDITORS

Disclosure of information to auditors

So far as the Directors are aware, there ts no relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware,
and each Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director in order to make
himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that
information

Independent auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP resigned as auditors to the Company with effect from 1 September 2011
and Ernst & Young LLP was appointed in its place A resolution to appoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditor
to the Company will be proposed at a General Meeting of the Company at which the accounts are laid
before the members

By order of the Board
Ivan Ezekiel
Secretary

21 October 2011
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MINERVA LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee (the ‘Committee’), was established under terms of reference approved by
the Board During the financial year ended 30 June 2011, Martin Pexton, Daniel Kitchen, John Matthews
and Oliver Whitehead were members of the Committee Martin Pexton replaced John Matthews as
Chairman of the Committee following the Company’s Annual General Meeting on 11 November 2010

The Committee met twice dunng the year and in the performance of its duties received reports from an
external adviser, Hewitt New Bridge Street, in relation to the performance condition attached to awards
under the Executive incentive Plan

On 19 August 2011, following the Company’s acquisition by Jupiter, each member of the Committee
resigned as a Director of the Company and the Board assumed responsibility for remuneration matters

Remuneration policy and Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration policy I1s designed to motivate, reward and retain executive Directors of the highest
calibre in a way which is consistent with their contribution to the success of the Company, while aligning
theirr rewards and incentives directly with the performance and growth of the Company The pay and
employment conditions of all employees were considered by the Committee at its meetings when
discussing and determining the Directors’ remuneration The Committee considered annual performance
bonuses and tong-term share based incentives to be the most effective mechanmisms for aligning the
interests of the executive Directors with shareholders

At 30 June 2011, remuneration packages compnsed basic salaries and benefits, annual performance
bonuses and long-term share based incentives Benefits include the provision of a company car, medical
insurance and life assurance cover In addition, contrnibutions to a defined contnbution pension scheme,
based solely on basic salary, were made or have been accrued in respect of all executive Directors

Salary and Other
fees Bonus benefits Total Pensions

Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended
30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30
June June June June June June June June June June
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Executives

Salmaan Hasan 441 441 132 441 14 21 587 903 44 44

Ivan Ezekiel 265 265 79 265 12 14 356 544 53 53

Tim Garnham 265 265 79 265 22 21 366 551 26 26
971 971 290 971 48 56 1,309 1,998 123 123

Non-executives

Oliver Whitehead 135 130 - - - - 135 130 - -

Daniel Kitchen' 50 8 - - - - 50 8 - -

John Matthews 50 50 - - - - 50 50 - -

Martin Pexton® 50 16 - - - - 50 16 - -
285 204 - - - - 285 204 - -

T Appointed as a Director on 4 May 2010
? Appainted as a Director on 5 March 2010
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MINERVA LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Directors’ interests
At 30 June 2011, the Directors’ interests, including immediate family interests, in the share capital of the
Company were as follows

Ordinary shares of Ordinary shares of

25 pence each 25 pence each

30 June 2011 30 June 2010

Oliver Whitehead 314,573 314,573
Salmaan Hasan 477,142 477,142
Ivan Ezekiel 120,831 120,831
Tim Garnham 2,414 2,414
John Matthews 65,000 65,000

Daniel Kitchen - -

Martin Pexton - -

Each Drector accepted the offer of 120 5 pence per share from Jupiter in respect of therr entire
shareholdings, and procured acceptance in respect of therr spouses’ shareholdings, in accordance with
their irrevocable undertakings Al Directors’ share interests, including those of their spouses, were
transferred to Jupiter when the offer for the Company was declared wholly unconditional on 18 August
2011

Colin Wagman, Paul Goswell, John Robertson and Wilson Lamont had no interests in the Company’s
shares on their appointment as Directors of the Company on 19 August 2011, or at the date of this report

Directors’ share incentives

The Group operated two share plans pnor to the Company's acquisiion by Jupiter the Executive
Incentive Plan (‘EIP’) and the Sharesave Scheme Durning the financial year, no conditional awards were
granted under the EIP and no options were granted pursuant to the Sharesave Scheme At 30 June
2011, options and awards granted to Directors over the following number of shares in the Company
remained outstanding

Salmaan Hasan

Exercise price/ Normal

At Granted Exercised Lapsed At market value exercise

1 July during during during 30 June on date of period/date

Scheme 2010 year year year 2011 award of vesting
EIP 344,195 - — 344,195* - nil/256 25p Sep 2010
EIP 1,633,333 - - - 1,633,333 nl/27 00p Oct 2011

Minerva Limited
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MINERVA LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Ivan Ezekiel

Exercise pricel/ Normal
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At market value exercise
1 July during during during 30 June on date of period/date
Scheme 2010 year year year 2011 award of vesting
Dec 2011 -
Sharesave 29,869 - - - 29,869 32 14p May 2012
EiP 208,517 - - 206,517 - nili256 25p Sep 2010
EIP 980,000 - - - 980,000 nil/27 00p Oct 2011

Tim Garnham
Exercise price/ Normal
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At market value exercise
1 July during during during 30 June on date of period/date
Scheme 2010 year year year 2011 award of vesting
Dec 2011 -
Sharesave 29,869 - - - 29,869 32 14p May 2012
EIP 206,517 - - 206,517 - nili256 25p Sep 2010
EIP 980,000 - - - 980,000 nl/27 00p Oct 2011

*All awards which lapsed dunng the year represent awards which did not vest due to the Company's comparative TSR performance

Sharesave 2001 Sharesave Scheme

Options granted under the Sharesave Scheme are not subject to performance conditions

EIP 2005 Executive Incentive Plan

The vestng of EIP awards 15 subject to a performance condition, which requires Minerva's Total Shareholder Return to be within the
top 20 per cent of comparator companies for all share awards to vest Share awards vest at progressively lower levels as the tevel of
Total Shareholder Return falls to a median level at which point a quarter of gptions vest Awards lapse for below median
performance

No consideraton was paid for the grant of any option or award

At 30 June 2011, and 19 August 2011 when the Jupiter offer was declared wholly unconditional, the
Company ranked first in its comparator Group, comprising companies comparable in size and business
which were formerly in the FTSE All-Share Real Estate Index, excluding agents

The mid-market price of the Company’s shares on the London Stock Exchange at 30 June 2011 was 121
pence per share During the year the share pnice ranged from 71 pence to 121 pence

On 19 August 2011 n accordance with the share scheme rules, cutstanding Sharesave options became
exercisable and, upon determination of Minerva’'s TSR ranking in its comparator group, outstanding EIP
awards vested in full

- Ivan Ezekiel and Tim Garnham each exercised thew Sharesave options over 26,695 shares on
19 August 2011 The balance of therr Sharesave options lapsed

- The EIP awards for Salmaan Hasan, lvan Ezekiel and Tim Garnham vested in full on 19 August
2011

Minerva Limited
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MINERVA LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Total shareholder return performance

The total shareholder return to the members of the Company, calculated by reference to share price
growth plus reinvested dividend, relative to the FTSE 350 Real Estate Index for each of the last five
financial years, s illustrated by the following chart

200
180

2006 2007 2008 2008 2010 2011

Minerva = = = »FTSE 350 Real Estate« SEC

The Board considers the FTSE 350 Real Estate Index to be the most appropnate broad market equity
index available for (lustrating the Company's performance to 30 June 2011

Non-executive remuneration

The non-executive Directors did not have service contracts Thewr appointments were subject to the
provisions of the Company's Articles of Association dealing with appointment and retirement by rotation
Non-executive Directors received a fee for therr services to the Company, including in connection with
Beoard and Board Committee meetings The non-executive Directors did not recewve any pension or other
benefits from the Company (such as bonuses, options or awards under any share incentive
arrangements) The non-executive Directors’ appointments were terminated by the Company on 19
August 2011 on three months' notice

Service contracts, contracts of significance and notice pericds

The service contract of Salmaan Hasan 1s dated 4 July 2005 and his appointment also commenced on
that date The contract has no fixed term and 1s terminable by either party on 12 months' notice The
service contract of [van Ezekiel 1s dated 24 August 2005 The contract has no fixed term and i1s terminable
by the Company on 12 months’ notice and by Ivan Ezekiel on six months’ notice Ivan Ezekiel's service
contract provides that, in the event that his employment 1s terminated without notice (other than for
cause), the Company will make a lump sum payment to him equivalent to 95 per cent of the salary and
benefits he would have received had he remained in employment durning the notice penod in full and final
settlement of any claims he may have The service contract of Tim Garnham is dated 16 January 20086
His appointment commenced on 30 August 2005 The contract has no fixed term and 1s terminable by the
Company on 12 months’ notice and by Tim Garnham on six months’ notice

On 19 August 2011, Colin Wagman and Paul Goswell, representing Delancey and John Robertson and
Wilson Lamont, representing Area, were appointed as Directors of the Company There are no service
contracts or letters of appointment for these Directors, who receive remuneration from Delancey and Area
accordingly, not Minerva or its subsidiary companies

Minerva Limited
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MINERVA LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

No Director has contractual nghts for compensation on early termination beyond payment of the
contractual notice period Other than set out above, there were no other persons who served as an
executive Director of the Company during the year ended 30 June 2011 Apart from share options,
conditional share awards and service contracts or non-executive Director letters of appomtment, no
contract subsisted during or at the end of the financial year in which a Director 1s or was matenally
interested and which 1s or was significant in relation to the Group's business during the penod under
review

Auditable information

The Remuneration report consists of non-auditable information with the exception of the sections entitied
Remuneration policy and Directors’ remuneration and the details of share options held by Directors set out
in the tables and accompanying notes on pages 7 and 8

For and on behalf of the Board

Ivan Ezekiel
Secretary
21 October 2011
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MINERVA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report, the Directors' remuneration report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law
the Directors have elected to prepare the Group and Parent Company financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umon Under
company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affars of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of
the Group for that period In prepanng these financial statements, the Directors are required to

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reascnable and prudent,

— state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject to any
matenal

- departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

~ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it I1s inappropriate to presume that
the Company will continue Iin business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and the Group and enable them te ensure that the financial statements and the
Directors' remuneration report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial
statements, Article 4 of the |IAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and the Group and hence for taking reascnable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are set out on pages 4 and 5 confirm that, to the best
of their knowledge

— the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets, habilities, financial pesition and loss of the Group, and

- the Business review contained in the Annual Report includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Group, together with a description of the principal
nsks and uncertainties that it faces

By order of the Board

-

Salmaan Hasan
Chief Executive
21 Qctober 2011
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MINERVA LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MINERVA LIMITED
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

We have audited the financial statements of Minerva Limited for the year ended 30 June 2011 which
comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated and Parent Company Statements of
Financial Position, the Consoldated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Parent
Company Cash Flow Statements, the Consclidated and Parent Company Statements of Changes in
Equity, the Accounting Polictes and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation i1s apphcable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the company’'s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set ocut on page 11, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
farr view Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the group's and the parent company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors,
and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-
financial information in the Annual Report to identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider
the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion

- the financial statements give a true and far view of the state of the group's and of the parent
company's affars as at 30 June 2011 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended,

- the group financizl statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union,

- the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared In accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006, and

- the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2008
In our cpmnion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
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MINERVA LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MINERVA LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Compames Act 2006 requires us
to report to you If, in our opinion

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been receved from branches not visited by us, or

- the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns, or

- certain disclosures of directors’ remuneratton specified by law are not made, or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

vaa)- r‘%wﬂo) (I
Eamonn McGrath (Senior Statutory Auditer)
for and on behalf of Emnst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

London
24 QOctober 2011

13
Minerva Limited

Company Number 2649607




MINERVA LIMITED
REPORT AND ACCOUNTS
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Consolidated income statement

Year to ! Year to
30 June ! 30 June
\ 2011 : 2010
Note £000 £000
Continuing operations :
Revenue 2 273,625 , 12,458
Property outgoings and cost of sales 2 {165,226) | (5,511)
Net property income 2 108,399 6,947
Administrative expenses ' {8,915) % (10,127)
Other Income - 1,285 158
Profit on sale of investment properties 11 l 994 3,804
Profit on sale of owner occupied property 12 -1 3,012
Gain on other financial assets 14 10 3
Movement on revaluation of investment properties 11 39,683 107,934
Operating profit 3 141,456 | 111,821
Finance costs 6 (45,234) (45,632)
Finance income 7 3,991 2,905
Net finance costs . (41,243) ! {42,727)
Profit before taxation | 100,213 69,094
Taxation g8 | {(8,010) -
Profit for the year ) 92,203 | 69,094
Attributable to: i
Equity shareholders of the parent , 63,273 69,114
Non-controlling interest : 28,930 {20}
Profit for the year 92,203 | 69,034
Farnings per share j
- Basic 0 ! 39.3p 42 9p
- Diluted 10 37.7p 41 4p
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MINERVA LIMITED
REPORT AND ACCOUNTS
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Year to Year to
30 June ’ 30 June
2011 2010
Note £000 £000
Profit for the year 92,203 69,094
Other comprehensive income
Net gain/{loss) on cash flow hedges 19 10,769 (13,875)
Amortisation of cash flow hedge reserve 6 3,543 6,299
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net 14,312 (7,576)
of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year 106,515 61,518
Attributable to: \
Equity shareholders of the parent 77,435 61,288
Non-controlling interest 29,080 ' 230
Total comprehensive income for the year 106,515 61,518
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MINERVA LIMITED
REPORT AND ACCOUNTS
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Consolidated statement of financial position

As at As at
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
Note £000 : £000

Assets ;

Non-current assets '
Investment properties 11 745,960 ! 726,215
Property, plant and equipment 12 42, 114
Other financial assets 14 38! 47
746,040 ' 726,376

Current assets I
Trading properties 15 136,446 228,647
Trade and other receivables 16 114,649 { 26,726
Cash and cash equivalents 17 47,022 54,996
) 298,117 310,369
Total assets ' - 1,044,157 1,036,745

Liabihities . |

Current habilities : l
Trade and other payables 18 (60,993} (68,672)
Dernvative financial instruments 19 - (8,776)
Borrowings 19 ! (116,076) (1,871)
Provisions for other habilites and charges 23 (2,975) ! {4,111)
(180,044) ' (83,430)

Non-current liabilities | ;
Borrowings 19 | (665,615) | (857,879)
Denvative financial instruments 19 {75,701) {79.875)
Provisions for other habiities and charges 23 - {1,364) (1,372)
. (742,680) | {939,126)
Total habilities ‘ (922,724) | (1,022,556)
Net assets 121,433 | 14,189

. |

Equity : |
Called up share capital 24 | 40,304 l 40,294
Share premium account : 198,426 | 198,422
Other reserves ; (6,616) | (20,778)
Retained deficit (139.525) | (203.513)
Total attributable to equity shareholders of the parent | 92,589 | 14,425
Non-controlling interest | 28,844 {236)
Total equity 121,433 14,189

Net asset value per share | l
- Basic 25 57.4p ' 8 9p
- Diluted EPRA 25 148.4p ! 131 8p

The financial statements on pages 14 to 44 were approved by the Board of Directors for issue on 21

Octob% and were signed on its behW

Salmaan Hasan Ivan Ezekiel
Director Director
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MINERVA LIMITED
REPORT AND ACCOUNTS
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Parent company statement of financial position

Company number 2649607
As at As at
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
Note £000 £000
Assets
Non-current assets !
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 13 37,233 36,158
37,233 36,158
Current assets ;
Trade and other receivables 16 35,733 53,814
Cash and cash equivalents 299 299
36,032 54,113
Total assets 73,265 90,271
Liabilities ’
Current hiabilities
Trade and other payables 18 (2,566) {1,182}
Total habilities {2,566) {1.182)
Net assets 70,699 89,089
Equity
Called up share capital 24 40,304 40,294
Share premium account 198,426 198,422
Other reserves 21,214 20,499
Retained deficit (189,245) (170,126)
Total equity 70,699 89,089

The financial statements on pages 14 to 44 were approved by the Board of Directors for issue on 21

October 2011 and were signed on its berwlj;%

Salmaan Hasan Ivan Ezekiel
Director Director
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MINERVA LIMITED
REPORT AND ACCOUNTS
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Statements of changes in equity

Attributable to equity shareholders

Non-
controll- Total
Share Share Other Retained ing (deficit)/
capital premium reserves deficit Total interest equity
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1 July 2009 40,294 198,422  (11,232) (273,910)  (46,426) 253  {46,173)
Profit for the year - - - 69,114 69,114 (20) 69,004
Other comprehensive
loss - - (7,826} - {7,826) 250 (7,576)
Total comprehensive
Income - - {7,826) 69,114 61,288 230 61,518
Share based payment - - - 1,283 1,283 - 1,283
Acquisition of non-
controling interest - - (1,720) - {1,720) (719) {2,439)
1 July 2010 40,294 198,422 (20,778} (203,513) 14,425 (236) 14,189
Profit for the year - - - 63,273 63,273 28,930 92,203
QOther comprehensive
Income - - 14,162 - 14,162 150 14,312
Total comprehensive
Income - - 14,162 63,273 77,435 29,080 106,515
Share capital i1ssued 10 4 - - 14 - 14
Share based payment - - - 715 715 - 715
30 June 2011 40,304 198,426 {6,616} (139,525) 92,589 28,844 121,433
Attributable to equity shareholders
Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserves deficit Total
Company £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1 July 2009 40,294 198,422 19,216 (131,342) 126,590
Share based payment - - 1,283 - 1,283
Loss for the year - - - (38,784) (38,784)
1 July 2010 40,294 198,422 20,499 (170,126) 89,089
Loss for the year - - - (19,119} (19,119)
Share capital 1ssued 10 4 - - 14
Share based payment - - 715 - 715
30 June 2011 40,304 198,426 21,214 (189,245) 70,699
18
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MINERVA LIMITED
REPORT AND ACCOUNTS
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Consolidated cash flow statement

Year to Year to
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
Note £000 £000
Cash flows from operations 30 99,346 (34,472)
Interest received 453 2,000
Interest paid {21,613) {12,053)
Cash flows from operating activities 78,186 {44,525)
Investing activities :
Additions to mvestment properties {13,621) ; (121,935)
Additions to property, plant and equipment - (48)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest - (2,439)
Receipts from sale of investment properties 43,654 31,316
Receipts from sale of owner occupied property - 9,069
Receipts from sale of property, plant and equipment 12 -
Cash flows from investing activities 30,045 {84,037)
Financing activities
New loans 69,151 131,858
Issue costs of loans {449) (933)
Repayment of loans (184,199) (28,617)
Cost of early loan repayment {722) (1,056)
Issue of share capital 14 -
Cash flows from financing activities (116,205) 101,252
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (7,974) (27,310)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 54,996 82,306
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 47,022 54,996
Parent Company cash flow statement
Year to Year to
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
Note £0600 £000
Cash flows from operations 30 - {3,132)
Interest received - 91
Cash flows from operating activities - (3,041)
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents - (3,041}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 299 3,340
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 299 299
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MINERVA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation
Minerva Limited 1s a imited habiity company incorporated and domiciled in the Unuted Kingdom The
Group's financial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidianes (‘the Group’)

The Group and Parent Company financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and
In accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS') as adopted by the European
Union (‘EU’)

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented in UK Sterling, the functional and
presentational currency of each company within the Group

Accounting standards, amendments and interpretations
The following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are mandatory for the first
time for the financial year ending 30 June 2011

- |AS 24 (amendment), ‘Related party transactions’

- 1AS 32 (amendment), ‘Financial instruments Presentation’

- |AS 34, ‘Intenm financial statements’

- 1AS 1 (revised), 'Presentation of financial statements’

- IFRS 3 (revised), 'Business combinations’

- 1AS 27 (revised), ‘Consolidated and separate financial statements’

- Amendment to IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments Disclosures’

- IFRIC 19, ‘Extinguishing financial iabtities with equity instruments’

- IFRIC 13, ‘Customer loyalty programmes relating to IAS 18, Revenue’

On adoption of IAS 1, (revised), the Group has elected to present an income statement and a separate
Statement of comprehensive income In respect of all other new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations, these have not had a significant impact on the Annual Report for the year ended 30 June
2011

The following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations have heen 1ssued, but are not
effective for the year ending 30 June 2011 and have not been adopted early by the Group

- 1AS 1, ‘Financial statement presentation — presentation of items of other comprehensive income’
- 1AS 12, ‘Income taxes’

- |AS 19, ‘Employee benefits {amendments)’

- IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments Classification and measurement’

- IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial instruments’

- IFRS 11, ‘Joint arrangements’

- IFRS 12, ‘Disclosure of involvement with other entities’

- IFRS 13, 'Fair value measurement’

Following an initial review 1t 1s not anticipated that the adoption of these standards and interpretations will
have a matenal impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all
periods presented in the financial statements
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MINERVA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

1 Accounting pelicies {cont)

Measurement convention

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with EU endorsed
IFRS, IFRIC mterpretations, the Companies Act 2006 apphicable to companies reporting under IFRS, and
the historical cost convention as modified by the inclusion of investment properhies, other financial assets
and financial instruments at fair value

Areas requinng the use of estimates and critical jJudgement that may impact on the Group’s earnings and
financial position include

- valuation of investment properties, where the Board has adopted the external valuations carned out
by professionally qualfied valuers in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Standards of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors,

- valuation of derivative financial instruments, where the Board has adopted the valuation carned out by
JC Rathbone Associates Limited, finance risk consultants, and

- recognition of a share based payment charge, where the Board has adopted the actuanal estmates
produced by Lane Clark & Peacock LLP

Other areas of jJudgement, risk and uncertainty, which are relevant to an understanding of the financial
results and position of the Group, are referred to in the Directors’ Report

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the financial results of subsidianes acquired
duning the year from the effective date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control
Business combinations are accounted for under the acquisiton method Intra-group balances and any
unrealised gains and losses ansing from intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparnng the Group’s
consolidated financial statements Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Group Control exists
when the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activites Subsidianies are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are held in the Company statement of financial position at cost and reviewed
annually for impairment The acquisition and disposal of shares in subsidianies, while retaining control, I1s
accounted for as transactions within equity The difference between the fair value of consideration and
the movement In interest in subsidiary 1s recorded in other reserves

Revenue

—  Property revenue comprises rental income from operating leases, service charge income and other
amounts receivable from tenants Rental income and lease incentives to tenants are recognised in the
iIncome statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term

— In respect of residential unit sales, revenue, bemng the far value of consideration received or
recevabie, 1s recognised when the significant nsks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the purchaser Non-refundable deposits are not recognised as revenue until the sale has been
recognised or the deposit forfeited by the purchaser

— Other income comprises non-property revenue and other sundry amounts earned on an accruals
basis
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MINERVA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

1 Accounting policies {cont )

Property expenses
Refurbishment expenditure in respect of major works 1s capitalised Renovation and refurbishment
expenditure of a revenue nature i1s charged to the income statement as incurred

Costs directly attnbutable to the arrangement of a lease, which include letting and professional fees, are
capitalised and amortised over the lease term

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are those significant items of income or expenditure which the Group has disclosed
separately because of their quantum or incidence so as to give a clearer understanding of the Group's
financial performance

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held for long-term rental income and for ¢capital appreciation and are
measured initiaily at cost, including related transaction costs, and subsequently at fair value Changes in
the fair value of an investment property at the statement of financial position date and i1ts carrying amount
prior to re-measurement, are recorded in the income statement

Additions to properties in the course of development or refurbishment include the cost of finance and
directly attributable internal and external costs incurred during the penod of development untl practical
completion

Trading properties

Trading properties are properties held for sale and are included in the statement of financial position at the
lower of cost and net realisable value Invesiment properties reclassified as trading properties are
transferred at deemed cost, bemng the carrying amount at the date of reclassification

Property transactions
Purchases and sales are recognised on exchange of contracts provided that, if the exchange s
conditional, all matenal conditions have heen satisfied shortly thereafter

Property, plant and equipment

This category compnses motor vehicles and fixtures and fittings following the disposal of all owner
occupied property In the prior year These assets are stated at histonical cost, or in the case of owner
occupied property its carrying value at the date of transfer, less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated imparrment Owner occupled property s depreciated over 50 years and motor vehicles and
fixtures and fittings are depreciated on a straight-line basis over therr estimated useful lives of between
three and five years

Impatrment of non-financial assets
An mmpairment loss 15 recognised for the amount by which the assets carrying amount exceeds ils
recoverable amount

Leases — the Group as a lessee

Leases are classified according to the substance of the transaction A lease that transfers substantially all
the nsks and rewards of ownership to the lessee 1s classified as a finance lease All other leases are
classified as operating leases
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MINERVA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

1 Accounting policies (cont }

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement over the term of the lease
on a straight-bne basis

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the lower of the far value of the
asset and the present value of the mirumum [ease payments and amortised over the shorter of the lease
term and useful economic ife Each lease payment i1s allocated between the llabihty and finance charges
s0 as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the finance balance outstanding The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in current and nen-current borrowings

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits with banks and short-term liquid investments

Borrowings

Bank loans are inctuded in the financial statements, inutially at farr value, net of transaction costs tncurred,
which are amortised over the life of the loan Bank loans are subsequently stated at amortised cost, any
difference between the proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the redemption value 1s recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest rate method

Borrowings are classified as current habiites unless the Group has an unconditional nght to defer
settlement of the hability for at least 12 months after the date of the statement of financial position

Derivative financial instruments

The Group's derivative financial instruments comprise Interest rates swaps, which are entered into in
order to manage interest rate risk from its activities, and embedded foretgn exchange forward contracts on
development activities All dervative financial instruments are recorded at faw value based on market
prices, estimated future cash flows and quoted forward rates as appropnate

The Group applies hedge accounting where the financial instruments meet the relevant cntena and
represent a cash flow hedge Changes in far value of such derivatives that are designated and effective
as hedges are recognised directly in reserves, to be transferred to the income statement in the penod
during which the hedge item 1s recognised in the income slatement Any ineffective portion of hedge
accounted instruments 1s recognised immediately 1n the income statement as a finance cost In all other
cases movements In the fair value of denvative financial instruments are taken to the income statement
Amounts payable and recewvable under such arrangements are included within net finance costs,
recognised on an accruals basis

The fair value of a hedge accounted instrument 1s classified as a non-current asset or liabiity when the
matunity of the hedged item s more than 12 months Non-hedging instruments are classified In
accordance with their particular matunty profile

Taxation

The charge for current taxation 1s based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which are non-
taxable or disallowed having taken into consideration capital allowances, indexation and available tax
losses

Deferred tax 1s provided in full, using the balance sheet hability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilites and their carrying amounts In the consolhdated financial
statements
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MINERVA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

1 Accounting policies (cont )

Deferred tax 1$ calculated on the basis that properties will be realised predominantly through sale and
therefore capital gains are reduced by indexation

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utihised

Income tax 1s determined using rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
statement of financial position date and which are expected to apply when the related deferred tax assetis
realised or the deferred tax hability 1s settled

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at farr value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method A prowision for impairment is established where there 1s objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due in accordance with the origmnal terms of
the receivable The amount of the provision i1s the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows The provision 1s recorded 1n the income statement

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recogrised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effactive interest method

Provisions for habilities and charges

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it 1s probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount has been reliably estimated

Provisions are measured at the present value, using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the ime value of meney and rnisks specific to the obligations The increase in the provision
due to the passage of time 1s recognised as interest expense

Share based payment
The Group prowvides share based payment in the form of share options and share award plans These
plans are discussed in greater detaill in the Remuneration report on pages 7 to 8

All share based payment arrangements granted after 7 November 2002 that have not vested prior to 1
January 2005 are recognised in the financial statements The Group uses, where appropriate, either a
modified binomial or a Monte Carloe valuation mode! and the resulting fair values, calculated at each award
date, are expensed through the ncome statement over the vesting peniod of the share based payments

The Group revises Its estimate of the number of employees expected to remain In service to each vesting
date and of the expected satisfaction of any other non-market performance conditions It recognises the
impact of the revision fo the onginal estimates, if any, i the income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity

The grant by the Company of options and awards in the Group's equity Instruments to the employees of
subsidiary undertakings are treated as capital contributions
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MINERVA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

1. Accounting policies {cont.)

Share capital
Share capital, which comprises ordinary shares, 1s classified as equity Incremental costs attnbutable to
the 1ssue of new subscriptions are shown In equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Retirement benefits
Employer contributions to defined contribution pension schemes of employees are charged to the income
statement as incurred

Dividends
Final dividend distributions to the Company's shareholders are recognised as a liability in the financial
statements in the penod n which they are approved Intenm dividends are recogmsed when paid

2. Net property income

Year ended Year ended

30 June ! 30 June

2011 - 2010

£000 £000

Trading property sales 254,042 | -
Rental income 18,024 | 11,870
Recoverable property expenses 1,559 ' 588
Revenue 273,625 12,458
Cost of sales on trading properties ! (155,412) | -
Property expenses including property provisions | {7,661) , (4,041)
Recoverable property expenses (1,559) (588)
Marketing expenses on properties under development (594) ' (882}
Property outgoings and cost of sales (165,226) (5,511}
Net property income 108,399 6,947

The chief aperating decision maker has been identified as the Board of Directors which, following a review
of the Group's internal reporting and the requirements of IFRS 8, ‘Operating Segments’, considers that the
Group operates in one business segment in Great Britain and as such no further segmental information 1s
required

The Group's mimimum lease payments receivable under non-canceliable operating leases, principally in
respect of leases over land and bulldings, are as follows

. Year ended | Year ended

30 June 30 June

. 2011 1 2010

\ £000 £000

Less than one year , 10,618 . 10,645
Between one and five years I 54,943 l 37.093
Over five years 202,210 110,493
' 267,771 158,231
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MINERVA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

3. Group operating profit

Year ended ! Year ended
30 June ! 30 June
2011 : 2010
£000 . £000
Operating profit 1s stated after charging/(crediting) !
Fees payable to Company's auditors for the audit of Parent Company |
and consolidated accounts f 70 80
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and 1ts associates for other ! 1
services .
Audit of the Company’s subsidianies pursuant te legislation B 40 ' 70
Other services pursuant to legislation - 37
Tax services ; - g -
All other services } - -
Depreciation charge , 65 147
Share based payment : 715 | 1,283
Operating lease rentals — land and buildings 1,180 . 677
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment E (4) | -
Property provisions (1,144) ' (148)
4, Staff costs
Year ended Year ended
' 30 June 30 June
. 2011 2010
Average number of employees (including executive Directors) \ 1
employed by the Group ' 24 25
| i
£000 | £000
Staff costs (including executive Directors) ]
Wages and salaries ' 2,697 1 2,716
Discretionary bonuses 451 | 1,220
Share based payment 715 1,283
Social security costs 439 | 506
Pensions costs ! 134 133
' 4,436 5,858
Non-executive Directors : |
Fees , 280 | 204
Social secunty costs 33, 24
4,749 6,086

Included in the above, £360,000 of the share based payment charge for the year Is attributable to the

Directors (2010 £666,000)
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MINERVA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

5. Directors’ remuneration

Year ended - Year ended

30 June 30 June

2011 2010

£000 . £000

Aggregate emoluments 1,594 2,202
Contributions {o pension schemes of Directors 123 123

Details of Directors’ remuneration, including amounts required to be disclosed by the Large and Medium-
sized Companies and Groups (Accounts & Reports) Regulations 2008, 1s detaled in the Directors’

Remuneration Report

6. Finance costs

Year ended | Year ended
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
Note £000 £000
Bank interest and charges 47,772 52,488
Amortisation of loan issue costs 2,513 2,041
Fair value loss on denvative financial instruments !
Non-hedging instruments 19 - 23,137
Ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges 1,369 -
Amortisation of cash flow hedge reserve 3,543 6,299
4,912, 29,436
Interest on obligations under finance leases 558 | 152
Charges relating to early loan repayment 790 1,338
Capitalised interest and similar charges (11,311) {39,823)
45,234 45,632
7. Finance income
Year ended Year ended
30 June | 30 June
2011 2010
Note £000 £000
interest on short-term deposits 352 735
Other interest recevable 89 ' 170
Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments ;
Non-hedging instruments 19 3,464 1,920
Ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges 19 86 80
3,550 2,000
3,991 | 2,905
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MINERVA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

8 Taxation

Year ended . Year ended
30 June 30 June
2011 2010
Note £000 £000
Current tax 8,010 -
Deferred tax 22 - -
Taxation charge for the year 8,010 . -
Profit before taxation 100,213 ! 69,094
Tax on profit at 27 5 per cent (2010 28 per cent) 27,559 | 19,346
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 131 920
Accelerated capital allowances ‘ (1,817) ! {2,025)

Differences arising from taxation of chargeable gains and i
property revaluations (11,186) ' (32,155)
Tax losses and other temporary differences {6,677) 13,914
Taxation charge for the year 8,010 . -

9. Loss dealt with by Parent Company

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2008, the Company’s income statement has not been
included in these financial statements A loss for the year of £19,119,000 (2010 loss of £38,784,000) is
deait with in the financial statements of the Company

10 Earnings per share

Earning per share 1s calculated on a weighted average of 161,188,464 ordinary shares of 25 pence each
in 1ssue throughout the year (2010 161,174,373 ordinary shares) and I1s based on profits attributable to
ordinary shareholders of £63,273,000 (2010 £69,114,000)

Diluted earnings per share s calculated after allowing for the exercise of employee share options and
incentive awards and 1s based on 167,634,639 ordinary shares of 25 pence each (2010 166,980,667
ordinary shares)

11. Investment properties

: 30 June I 30 June

: 2011 | 2010
Group ! £000 l £000
At 1 July Net book value i 726,215 502,395
Addittons ‘ 24,398 | 142,851
Disposals . (44,336) : (26,965)
Revaluation movement | 39,683 ' 107,934
At 30 June Net book value 745,960 | 726,215
Recogmtion of finance lease obligations (9,571) | (2,1286)
Amounts included within prepayments and accrued income 12,911 2,661
At end of year At valuation 749,300 726,750

The investment properties were valued on a market value basis by CB Richard Elis Limited, independent
external valuers, as at the year end in accordance with the current edition of the Appraisal and Valuation
Standards 1ssued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
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MINERVA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

11 Investment properties (cont )

The total accumulated amount of interest capitalised as part of the cost of investment properties was
£84,173,000 (2010 £79,188,000) The average cost of interest capitalised was 4 2 per cent {2010 6 5 per
cent)

During the year, the Group disposed of investment properties, realising a net profit on disposal of
£994,000 (2010 £3,894,000)

Investment properties Iinclude freehold properties with a net book value of £383,376,000 {2010
£397,232,000) and long leasehold properties with a net book value of £362,584,000 (2010
£328,983,000)

12. Property, plant and equipment

Owner Fixtures

occupied and Motor

property fitings vehicles Total
Group £000 £000 £000 £000
Valuation/cost
At 1 July 2009 9,160 1,359 257 10,776
Additions - 48 - 48
Disposals {(9,160) - - (9,160)
At 1 July 2010 - 1,407 257 1,664
Disposals - - (34} {34)
At 30 June 2011 - 1,407 223 1,630
Depreciation
At 1 July 2009 3,060 1,284 162 4,506
Depreciation charge 43 55 49 147
Disposals (3,103} - - (3,103)
At 1 July 2010 - 1,339 211 1,550
Depreciation charge - 37 28 65
Disposals - - {27} (27)
At 30 June 2011 - 1,376 212 1,588
Net book value at 30 June 2011 - 31 11 42 ,
Net book value at 30 June 2010 - 68 46 114

During the prior year, the Group disposed of its owner occupied property, realising a profit on disposal of
£3,012,000

13 Investment in subsidiary undertaking

30 June ! 30 June

' 2011 | 2010

£000 £000

At 1 July Net book value 36,158 . 44,020
Additions ; 715! 1,283
Write back of impairment/(impairment} 360 (9,145)
At 30 June Net book value 37,233 36,158

28
Minerva Limited
Company Number 2649607




MINERVA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

13. Investment in subsidiary undertaking (cont )

Investments in subsidianes are held in the statement of financial position at cost and are reviewed for
impairment annually The recoverable amount of the investment 1s fair value less cost of sale and 1s
determned with reference to the net assets of the subsidiary

At the year end, the Company was the ultimate holding company of the Group and has the following
principal subsidiary undertakings which are consolidated and have as ther man activity property
investment, development, trading, investment halding or the provision of property related services Unless
otherwise stated all subsidiary undertakings are wholly-owned and registered and operate in Great Bntain

Angelmist Limited

Antares Properties Limited
Castlereport Limited

Chainbill Limited

Croydon Letsure Limited
Croydon Plaza Limited
Croydon Retail Limited
Eaglepnint Limited

Futurestate Limited

Goldrock Developments Limited
Gradegiit Limited

Hutch Investments Limited
Jack Cade Limited

Jimtrack Limited

Lancaster Gate (Hyde Park) Limited!
Larchfield Investments Limited
Leinster HH LLP

LLH One Limited

LLH Two Limited

M1 Limited

Minerva (Abingdons) Limited
Minerva Aldgate Limited
Minerva (Ambassador} Limited
Minerva Bayswater One Limited
Minerva Bayswater Two Limited
Minerva (City) Limited

Minerva Corporation Limited

Minerva {Croydon} Limited

Minerva Dowgate Limited

Minerva (Finance) Limited

Minerva (Holland Park) Limited
Minerva (Kensington) Limited

Minerva (Lancaster Gate) Limited
Minerva Property Holdings pic
Minerva Property Investments Limited
Minerva Property Services Limited
Minerva Residential Holdings Limited
Minerva (Stores) Limited

Minerva {(Ventures) Limited

Minerva {(West End) Limited

Minerva Walbrook Limited Partnership
Minerva (Wandsworth) Limited

OMD Holdings Limited

OMD Helborn Limited

OMD Property (Holborn) Limited

Park Place {General Partner) Limited
Park Place Limited Partnership®
Sparrage Properties Limited

St Swithin’s House (General Partner) Limited
245 Blackfnars Road Limited

245 Blackfnars Road Investments Limited
90 High Holborn Limited Partnership*

*Established according to Jersey Law and operates, through its general partner, in Great Bntan
174 8 per cent of the issued shares are held by the Group

14 Other financial assets

j’ 30 June ' 30 June
[ 2011 ! 2010
! £000 | £000
At 1 July Net book value 47 44
Write back of impairment 10 ! 3
Disposal ' (19) ! -
At 30 June. Net book value 38 47
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14, Other financial assets (cont )

Investments held as other financial assets are traded in active markets and are valued on the basis of
quoted market prices at the statement of financial position date, which approximates to farr value

15 Trading properties

30 June | 30 June

2011 | 2010

Group £000 £000
At 1 July i 228,647 181,597
Additions 63,211 47,050
Disposals ‘ {155,412) -
At 30 June: Book value 136,446 228,647
At 30 June: valuation 243,000 398,100

Trading properties compnise the Lancaster Gate and Odeon Kensington properties, which have been
stated at cost in the consolidated statement of financial position but were valued at 30 June 2011 on a
market value basis by CB Richard Ellis Limited, independent external valuers, in accordance with the
current edition of the Appraisal and Valuation Standards issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors The total accumutated amount of interest capitalised as part of the cost of the properties was
£36,503,000 (2010 £30,177,000) The average cost of interest capitalised was 3 4 per cent (2010 67
per cent)

Trading properties are wholly owned with the exception of Lancaster Gate, where the Group holds a
majonty interest in the project and earns profits based on the following tranches

Profits up to 10% of project costs 95%
Profits between 10% and 15% of project costs 80%
Profits between 15% and 20% of project costs 60%
Profits above 20% of project costs 50%

16. Trade and other receivables

' : Parent Parent

i Group f Group Company | Company

¢ 30 June . 30June ! 30 June | 30 June

s 2011 2010 | 2011 | 2010

£000 £000 | £000 | £000

Trade receivables | 2,050 1,738 - - -
Allowance for doubtful debts ' (698) * {75) - -
1,352 1,663 -1 -

Other receivables [ 1,931 5,159 44 | 101
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings f - - 35,689 53,633
Prepayments and accrued income ‘ 13,944 1 4,204 . - ]' 80
Amounts receivable on sales of trading properties ! 95,672 | - -, -
Deposits on future sales of trading properties ‘ 1,750 ' 15,700 - -
114,649 26,726 35,733 . 53,814
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16 Trade and other receivables (cont)

' Parent ' Parent
Group | Group  Company  Company
30 June ! 30 June 30 June 30 June
2011 . 2010 2011 ' 2010
£000 ' £000 £000 | £000

Movement in allowance for doubtful debt i
At 1 July 75 153 - -
Allowance 630 55 - -
Whtten off - {7) - -
Recovered {7): (126) . - -
At 30 June 698 75 -t -

Trade receivables compnse rental income and service charges which are due on contracted quarter days
with no credit period Trade receivables are assessed on a tenant by tenant basis and where there 1s
doubt as to recoverability of the debt, a specific allowance ts made Other recevables predominantly
compnrise recoverable Value Added Tax and other receivable amounts All significant recevables due to
be settled, have been received since 30 June 2011

There are no current trade or other recewvables, over due or past credit terms but not impaired greater
than six months old  Group prepayments and accrued income at 30 June 2011 include £1,331,000 of
prepaid development expenditure (2010 £682,000)

17. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include £20,849,000 (2010 £28,753,000) retained in deposit, rent and
restricted accounts which 1s not readily available to the Group for day-to-day commercial purposes

18. Trade and other payables

. { ) Parent Parent

Group Group Company Company

. 30June | 30 June! 30 June 30 June

2011 | 2010 | 2011 2010

£000 £000 £000 , £000

Trade payables \ 1,119 § 1,916 - -

Taxation and social secunty ! 11,808 ¢ 1,099 I - -

Other payables 10,434 | 5,958 | 299 299

Accruals and deferred income 28,699 ; 28,819 t 2,267 883

Deferred income on future sales of trading ' 8,933, 30,880 . - -
properties ‘ '

60,993 68,672 2,566 1,182

Deferred income on future sales of trading properties relates to deposits received from pre-sales of
apartments at Lancaster Gate Of the total deposits receved at 30 June 2011 of £8,933,000 (2010
£30,880,000), £290,000 was held in solicitor's accounts (2010 £15,700,000), £6,888,000 has been
appled against the loan {2010 £13,000,000), and £1,755,000 was held within restricted cash and has
been applied against the loan since the year end (2010 £2,180,000}
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19. Borrowings and derivative financial instruments

30 June | 30 June
2011 | 2010
Group £000 £000
Borrowings
Current liabilities ,
Bank and other borrowings ‘ 116,073 ; 1,869
Finance lease obligations 3 2
116,076 ' 1,871
Non-current liabilities . i
Bank and other borrowings ; 656,047 855,755
Finance lease obligations 9,568 | 2,124
665,615 857,879

Maturity of borrowings

Bank and other borrowings

! 30 June ! 30 June

2011 2010

' £000 ! £000

Less than one year | 116,073 | 1,869
Between one and two years ! 110,495 , 138,546
Between two and five years 511,702 455,261
Qver five years 33,850 261,948
772,120 857,624

Since 30 June 2011, the loans matuning in less than one year have been extended and/or restructured
such that there are no loans maturing In the financial year ending 30 June 2011 For further details, see

note 31 on post balance sheet events

Finance lease cbligations
(net of future finance

Finance lease obligations charges)

| 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June

2011 | 2010 - 2011 2010

£000 | £000 £000 | £000

Less than one year 437 | 153 3 2
Between one and two years 514 | 153 3 J 3
Between two and five years ‘ 1,965 | 459 3 11 10
Qver five years 42,089 9,160 9,554 2,111
45,005 4 9,925 9,571 2,126

Future finance charges on leases {35,434) ! (7,799) - -
' 9,571 1 2,126 9,571 2,126
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19 Borrowings and derivative financial instruments (cont )

Undrawn facilities
At 30 June 2011 the Group had undrawn loan faciittes maturing as follows

30 June | 30 June

2011 ! 2010

Group £000 | £000
Less than one year ' 17,867 -
Between one and two years 40,576 : 3,844
Between two and five years 48,162 86,445
Over five years - 49,014
106,605 ! 139,303

Included within the analysis of undrawn facilites are development loan facilities, which, although
committed, have conditions that need to be satisfied prior to drawdown

Interest rate nisk profile of borrowings
Fixed and floating rate barrowings of the Group as at 30 June 2011 are analysed as follows

30 June 2011 , 30 June 2010

, Wagighted ! Weighted

: average average

interest | interest

Total rate | Total rate

£000 % £000 %

Swapped fixed-rate borrowings : 563,857 6.5 803,218 65

Floating rate horrowings 208,263 21 54,406 22
Total borrowings 772,120 ‘ 857,624

Swapped fixed arrangements have the effect of transforming floating rate liabiities into fixed rate habihties
The weighted average interest rate shown for fixed rate habilites at 30 June 2011 i1s 6 5 per cent (2010
6 5 per cent) and includes loan margins ranging from 1 0 per cent to 2 0 per cent with all inclusive interest
rates ranging from 5 2 per cent to 6 7 per cent {2010 5 2 per cent to 7 4 per cent} The weighted average
period of the Group’s swapped fixed-rate borrowings was 3 3 years at 30 June 2011 (2010 3 1 years)

Floating rate borrowings at 30 June 2011 incurs interest at margins between 1 2 per cent and 2 0 per cent
over LIBOR (2010 1 2 per cent and 1 75 per cent)
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19 Borrowings and derivative financial instruments {cont )

Derivative financial instruments

Assets Liabiities Total
£000 £000 £000
At 1 July 2009 419 (54,058) (53,639)
Movement in far value recognised sn equity
Effectiveness on cash flow hedges - {13,875) (13,875)
Movement in fair value recognised in income statement
Ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges - 80 80
Movement on non-hedging instruments (419) {20,798) {21,217)
At 1 July 2010 - (88,651) {88,651)
Movement in fair value recognised in equity
Effectiveness on cash flow hedges - 10,769 10,769
Movement in fair value recognised In income statement
Ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges - {1,283) (1,283)
Movement on non-hedging insiruments - 3.464 3,464
At 30 June 2011 - (75,701) (75,701)

Fair value estimation

All derivative financial instruments are carnied at farr value in the statement of financial position, following
a valuation as at 30 June 2011 undertaken by JC Rathbone Associates Limited Fair value 1s calculated
using the present value of the estimated future cash flows For these financial instruments fair value

approximates to carrying value

Fair value hierarchy

As of 1 April 2009, the Group adopted amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments Disclosures ' IFRS 7
requires disclosures of how the Group's financial instruments measured at fair value fit within the following

fair value hierarchy

- quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilities (level 1),
- inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are cbservable for the asset or hability,

either directly or indirectly (level 2),

- inputs for the asset or hability are not based on observable market data (level 3)

The Group considers that all financial instruments outlined above fall within level 2 of the hierarchy
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20. Financial assets and habilities carrying values

As at As at

30 June ' 30 June

2011 | 2010

Group £000 , £000
Non-current assets 1
Held for trading financial assets i

Other financial assets at fair value 38 47

38 47
Current loans and receivables !

Trade and other receivables at amortised cost less impairment 114,649 L 26,726

Cash and cash equivalents 47,022 - 54,996

161,671 81,722

Total financial assets 161,709 | 81,769
Current liabilities ‘ ,
Financial labilties measured at amortised cost i

Trade and other payables {52,508) i {36,631)

Borrowings {116,077) | (1,871)

Provisions for other habilties and charges (2,975) . (4,111)
Held for trading financial liabilities !

Dervative financial instruments used for hedging at farr value ‘ - | (8.705)

Derivative financial instruments not used for hedging at fair value - - — {71}

(171,560) | (51,389}
Non-current liabilities ! !
Financial habilities measured at amortised cost i l

Borrowings ! (665,615) : (857,879}

Provisions for other habiities and charges ! {1,364) (1,372)
Held for trading financial habilities ; l

Denvative financial instruments used for hedging at fair value (38,912) ! (39,622)

Derivative financial instruments not used for hedging at fair value (36,789) ! (40,253)

(742,680) ' (939,126)

Total financial habilities (914,240) (990,515)

As at As at

' 30 June | 30 June

2011 . 2010

Company £000 . £000
Current loans and receivables i

Trade and other receivables at amortised cost less iImpairment ' 35,733 | 53,814

Cash and cash equivalents ’ 299 299

Total financial assets ! 36,032 ¢ 54,113
Current habilities ' |

Trade and other payables at amortised cost {(2,566) {1,182)

Total financial habilities {2,566) (1,182)
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21 Financial nsk management

In the normal course of business, the Group I1s exposed to interest rate nsk, iquidity nisk, credit nsk and to
a lesser extent currency nisk, which It seeks to mitigate through a combination of sound business practices
and use of derivative financial instruments

The Group’s nsk management pelicies and practices are as follows

Interest rate management

The Group has a portfolio of floating rate debt Interest rate swaps are generally used to alter the interest
rate profile of the Group’'s debt, having the effect of transforming floating rate liabiites mto fixed rate
habiibes The Group has well established practices to monitor the interest rates prevalling on current
borrowings Further details relating to denvative financial instruments are given in note 19

Sensitivity to interest rates

The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates relates to the effect of a rate change on the fair value of
the Group's derivative financial nstruments and the cost of servicing the Group's floating rate borrowings
Based on the 30 June 2011 statement of financial position, a 50 basis point nise In interest rates could
equate to a £13,439,000 net gan (2010 £16,476,000), conversely a 50 basis pont fall could result in a
net loss of £13,439,000 (2010 £16,476,000)

In the circumstances where there 15 a 50 basis point nse, a gan of £6,308,000 (2010 £7,496,000) n
respect of the net gain would be expected to go through the income statement and a gain of £7,131,000
(2010 £8,980,000) would be taken to equity In the circumstances where there 1s a 50 basis paints fall, a
loss of £6,308,000 (2010 £7,496,000) in respect of the net loss would be allocated to the income
statement with a loss of £7,131,000 (2010 £8,980,000) going through equity

Credit risk management
Principal financial assets comprise investments, trade and other receivables and cash and deposits

The credit nsk in respect of cash and deposits 1s Imited and mitigated since the counterparties are
principally reputable banks with a mimimum Standard and Poor’s long term credit rating of A

The level of credit nsk attaching to the remaining financial assets is low, given ther relative size Other
financial assets predominantly comprise rental and service charge income due from tenants, recoverable
Value Added Taxation and deposits receivable in respect of future trading property sales The credit nisk
attaching to these assets 1s mitigated by a combination of an assessment of a tenant’s, purchaser’s or,
supplier's financial standing before credit 1s advanced, the holding deposits and/or guarantees and rental
contracts requiring rent to be paid in advance

Liquidity management

Cash reserves are monitered to ensure adequate resources are avallable to provide the Group with
security, hquidity and the flexibility during the development phase of its projects, whilst also enabling it to
invest in new opportunities

The Group seeks, where possible, to borrow on a non-recourse or hmited-recourse basis, with a view to
marntaining an appropnate matunty profile that supports the Group’s operations Borrowings usually
comprise variable rate loans in the first instance
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21 Fmwancial nsk management (cont.)

Capital nsk management
The Group seeks to manage its capital in a way to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern,
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders

In order to achieve these objectives, the Group may adjust the dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, 1ssue new shares or purchase, develop or sell assets

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt and shareholders’ equity Shareholders’ equity
compnises share capial, reserves and retained earnings and s disclosed In the Group Statement of
changes 1n equity Net debt compnises borrowings, which are disclosed in note 19 less cash which I1s
disclosed in the Statement of financial position

Maturity analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash flows relating to financial habilities

Trade |

' and Dervative ‘

other financial ;

i payable Borrowings Instruments Provisions Total |

Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 |

30 June 2011 !
Less than one year | 52,508 136,566 24,208 2,975 216,257
Between one and two years | - 131,730 20,433 369 152,532

Between two and five years , - 546,056 26,147 1,062 573,265 !

Over five years ' - 125,012 8,526 170 133,708 i

Total contracted cash flows 52,508 939,364 79,314 4576 1,075,762

Carry:ng value | 52,508 781,691 75,701 4,339 914,240 |

30 June 2410

Less than one year 36,631 23,588 29,104 4,111 93,434
Between one and two years - 163,464 21,103 31z 184,879
Between two and five years - 520,255 36,596 938 557,789
Over five years - 329,771 8,164 467 338,402
Total contracted cash flows 36,631 1,037,078 94,967 5,828 1,174,504
Carrying value 36,631 859,750 §8,651 5483 990,515

Parent Company undiscounted contractual cash flows relating to financial habiities compnse trade and
other payables, which are due within one year are disclosed in note 18
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22. Deferred tax

Accelerated Derivative
capital Tax Temporary financial
allowances losses differences nstruments Total
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 July 2009 4,448 (13,047) 8,599 - -
Movement i iIncome statement {1,565) (11,864) 13,429 - -
Movement in equity - - - - -
At 1 July 2010 2,883 (24,911} 22,028 - -,
Movement in income statement ' 1,563 19,515 (21,078) - -
Moverment in equity - - - - -
At 30 June 2011 4,446 (5,396} 950 - -

Deferred tax assets in respect of losses available against future taxable income, not recognised at the
statement of financial position date, amount to £19,040,000 (2010 £2,524,000) Deferred tax assets n
respect of contingent losses not recogmised at the date of the statement of financial position amount to
£29,870,000 (2010 £42,890,000)

In addition, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of capital losses generated in the
prior year These capital losses, totalling in the region of £300,000,000, which are subject to HMRC
agreement, should be available to offset future capital gains If and when they anse

A number of changes to the UK Corporation tax system were announced in the 22 June 2010 and 23
March 2011 Budget Statements The Finance {No 2) Act 2010 included legislation to reduce the main
rate of corporation tax from 28% to 27% from 1 Apnl 2011 A further reduction to the main rate was
substantively enacted on 29 March 2011 to reduce the rate from 1 Apnl 2011 to 26% with further 1%
reductions per annum to 23% by 1 Aprl 2014 The change to 26% had been enacted at the balance
sheet date and its impact has therefore been included in these financial statements

23. Provisions for other liabilities and charges

' 30 June ; 30 June

. 2011 2010
Group - £000 . £000
At 1 July 5,483 5,631
Credit to Income statement (1,144) ! (148)
At 30 June 4,339 } 5,483
Less non-current portion : (1,364) (1,372)
Current portion 2,975 4,111

A provision has been made in relation to a residual leasehald interest considered to be onerous, potential
remaining obligations ansing from the Group's historic development activibies, and other property costs All
provisions are considered current, with the exception of the onerous lease, which 15 due to expire in
December 2016
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24 Called up share capital

At At At At
30 June | 30 June 30 June | 30 June
2011 2010 2011 2010
£000 . £000 Number | Number
Authorised ' |
Ordinary shares of 25p each 75,000 - 75,000 300,000,000 300,000,000
Issued and fully paid | |
Qrdinary shares of 25p each 40,304 40,294 161,216,376 161,174,373

Since 30 June 2011, 6,574,971 shares have been 1ssued bringing the total shares in 1ssue to 167,791,347

At 30 June 2011, optiens and awards granted to employees over the following number of shares in the
Company remained outstanding

At Granted Forfeited/ At
1 July during cancelled 30 June Exercise
2010 year dunng year 2011 price
Scheme Date of Grant Number Number Number Number Pence
2001 Sharesave 27 Oct 2008 476,893 - (59,738) , 417,155 32 14p
Scheme !
476,893 - (59,738) 417,155 1
! ! Market
At Awarded Forfeited/ At é price on
1 July dunng lapsed 30 June date of
2010 year during year | 2011 award
Scheme Date of Award Number Number Number = Number Pence
2005 Executive 11 Sep 2007 1,399,220 - (1,399,220) ' - 256 25p
Incentive Plan 16 Oct 2007 7,745 - {7,745) . - I 218 75p
27 Oct 2008 6,583,195 - -' 6,593,195 . 27 00p
8,000,160 - (1,406,965) 6,593,195

At 30 June 2011 the following options granted to subscribe for new ordinary shares of 25 pence each
under the Company’s Sharesave Scheme remained outstanding

30 June 2011 | Subscription

!

F Number of price
First exercisable date F shares Pence
December 2011 t 328,559 | 32 14p
December 2013 l 88,596 ' 32 14p

The following awards of conditional shares have been granted under the 2005 Executive Incentive Plan
and remain cutstanding at 30 June 2011

30 June 2011 Subscription

Number of | price

Vesting date ! shares Pence
October 2011 6,593,195 ° nil
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24 Called up share capital {(cont )

The farr value of grants and awards are measured by Lane Clark & Peacock LLP using a combination of
Monte Carlo simulation models and modfied binomial models, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which instruments were granted The fair value 1s recognised over the expected vesting
pertod No awards were granted in the year The main assumptions of the pricing model are as follows

2005 Executive 2001 Sharesave 2001 Sharesave

Incentive Plan Scheme Scheme
Grant date 27 Oct 2008 27 Oct 2008 27 Oct 2008
Exercise price nit 32 14p 3214p
Expected life (years) 3 3 5
Expected volatiity per annum 88% 88% 70%
Expected dividend yield per annum 0% 0% 0%
Risk free rate per annum 36% 37% 41%

Expected volatiity was determined by reference to the hustorical volatility of the Minerva plc share price
over a penod consistent with expected hfe of the award and reflects the assumption that the historcal
volatility 1s indicative of future trends, but may not necessarlly be the actual outcome

The 2005 Executive Incentive Plan has a performance condition based cn the Company's Total
Shareholder Return (‘'TSR’)} measured against a Comparator Group of companies This 15 a 'market
condition’ for the purpose of IFRS 2 and, as such, it 1s allowed for in the calculation of the farr value The
assumptions used were based on an analysis of the histonc volatiity of each comparator company's share
price return as well as the statistical correlations between the historic TSRs of the different shares

For both the Discretionary Share Option Scheme and Sharesave Scheme awards, the far values take into
account an assumed pattern of early exercise, dependent on the leve! of share prices during the exercise
penod

25 Net asset value per share

: 30 June . 30 June

: 2011 ! 2010

£000 . £000

Basic net asset value ) 92,589 14,425
Adjustment for !
Group's estimated share of unrecognised revaluation surplus on i

trading properties '| 81,041 118,038

Group's share of fair value deficit on denivative financial instruments 75,701 88,501

Diluted EPRA net asset value 249,331 . 220,964
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25 Net asset value per share (cont)

30 June 30 June

2011 2010

Number ! Number

Basic ) 161,216 161,174
Potential share awards 6,754 6,437
Diluted 167,970 167,611

. 30 June 2011 % 30 June 2010

Pence | Pence
Basic net asset value per share 57.4 | 89
Potenttal share awards : (2.3) ! (03)
Diluted net asset value per share ) 551 . 86
Adjustment for ‘ '
Group's estimated share of unrecognised revaluation surplus on ‘ :
trading properties ' 48.2 704
Group’s share of far value deficit on derivative financial instruments 45.1 l 528
Diluted EPRA net asset value per share ' 148.4 . 1318

Diluted EPRA net asset value is a measure of the Group's financial position that incorporates the Group's
pre-tax share of the unrecognised revaluation surplus of its trading properties, having taken into account
the estimated share attributable to non-controlling interest and fair value deficit of the Group's derivative
financial instruments

The dilution effect of the potential share awards reduces Diluted EPRA net asset value per share by 6 3
pence (2010 5 3 pence)to 148 4 pence (2010 131 & pence)

26. Dividends
No dividend was proposed or paid in respect of the year ended 30 June 2011 (2010 £nil)

27 Capital commitments
Capital commitments contracted, but not provided for, at 30 June 2011 relating to the Group's
development activities were £10,056,000 (2010 £44,281,000)

28. Commitments under operating leases
Total commitments under non-canceltable operating leases

i 30 June | 30 June

2011 2010

£000 £000

Less than one year ' 1,248 1,147
Between one and five years ' 4,681 4,442
Qver five years 4,883 | 5,874
10,810 ° 11,463
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29 Contingent habilities

The Company has guaranteed external borrowings of some of its subsidiary undertakings, which at the
statement of financial position date amounted to £22,974,000 (2010 £22,051,000)
Company has guaranteed certain loan interest obligations of its subsidiary undertakings

30 Cash flows from operations

addition, the

30 June 30 June
2011, 2010
Group £000 £000
Profit before taxation 100,213 69,094
Net finance costs 41,243 42,727
Operating profit 141,456 111,821
Depreciation 65 147
Property provisions (380) i (148)
Movement on revaluation of investment properties (39,683) (107,934)
Profit on sale of investment properties {994) (3,894)
Profit on sale of owner occupied property - (3,012)
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment {4) . -
Profit on sale of trading properties (98,630) | -
Amortisation of lease incentives, letting fees and other non-cash (10,026) (626)
items .
Share based payment 715 1,283
Trading property proceeds received, net of additions 94,820 (31,792)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 4,260 (1,793)
Increase in trade and other payables 7,747 1,476
Cash flows from operations 99,346 (34,472)
30 June . 30 June
2011 2010
Parent Company £000 | £000
Loss before taxation (19,119} | (38,784)
Net finance costs - (7).
Operating profit {19,119) (38,791)
Imparrment of investment in subsidiary undertaking (360) 9,145
Impairment of amount owed by subsidiary undertakings 13,909 44,661
(Decrease)ncrease in trade and other recewvables 4,186 | (18,698)
Increase in trade and other payables 1,384 ¢ 551
Cash flows from operations - (3,132)

31. Post balance sheet events

Certain post balance sheet events are disclosed in the Directors’ Report and Directors’ Remuneration
Report In addition, following the acquisition of the Company by Jupiter, loans scheduled to mature in the
financial year ending 30 June 2012 were extended and/or restructured, such that there are no loans now

scheduled to mature duning the year ending 30 June 2012
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31 Post balance sheet events (cont )

Jupiter Holdco {BVI} Limited (‘Jupiter Holdco') also provided the Company with a new facility of up to £40
milicn to meet costs, including those asscciated with the Company's acquisiton by Jupiter and
amendment or extension of certain existing loan facilites The funding was provided in the form of deep
discount bonds i1ssued by the Company and subscribed for by Jupiter Holdco at a discount to ther
nominal value, which will be equivalent on matunty to an interest rate of 20 per cent per annum on the
relevant subscription price  The Company has a nght to ask Jupiter Holdco to convert the redeemable
value of the bonds to fully paid shares in the Company before the matunty date on 31 December 2012

32 Related party transactions

The Group has not entered into any transactions with related parties other than with key management
who are considered to be the executive Directors The share awards and options granted to executive
Directors in the year are disclosed in the Remuneration report on pages 7 and 8

Dunng the year the Company was charged £4,678,000 of management fees by subsidianes (2010
£7,608,000) Amounts advanced by the Company to subsidiary undertakings, are disclosed in note 16 and
are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand The Company received intra-group dimvidends of
£nil during the year (2010 £22,400,000)
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MINERVA WALBROOK LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

REPORT OF THE GENERAL PARTNERS

Formation and purpose

The Minerva Walbrook Limited Partnership was established under a Partnership Deed {“the Partnership Deed”)
on 27 March 2008 and was registered as a Limited Partnership in accordance with the provisions of Section 8
of the Limited Partnerships Act 1807

The Limited Partnership 1s managed by the General Partner, who 1s responsible for investment and
management decisions and the business affairs of the Partnership

The Limited Partnership was formed to acquire, hold, develop, manage and let commercial property and to
carry on property investment activiies (including property development with a view to its retention as a
development) in accordance with the objectives set out in the Business Plan

The inhal term of the Limited Partnershup will expire on 1 February 2106, unless all Pariners agree to extend
the Limited Partnership, in which case the Limited Partnership shall continue until such new termination date as
the Partners shall determine

Review of activities

The Limited Partnership

In line with its formation and purpose, the Limited Partnership has carned on the development of the Walbrook
office scheme in Central London The financial statements on pages 5 to 11 set out the results for the year
ended 30 June 2010 and reflect the state of the Limited Partnership's affairs at that date

The Partners

The General Partner duning the year was St Swithin's House (General Partner) Limited and the Limited
Partners in the period were St Swithin's House Urit Trust and Granite House Unit Trust The QOperator of the
Partnership is Ogier Corporate Administration Limited

Constitution and governance

The Limited Partnership 1s bound by the Limited Partnership Deed (‘The Partnership Deed’) dated 27 March
2006

Capital contributions
The capital contributions of the Partners are set out In Note 8 to the financial statements
Rights and entittements

General Partner and Operator

The General Partner has overall responsibility for the management and control of the business of the Limited
Partnership This includes ensuning that the Limited Partnership 1s always operated and administered by an
Operator appropnately authorised to do so under The Financial Services and Markets Act 200C 'FSMA' The
Operator shall operate and administer the Limited Partnership insofar as such operation and administration
requres authonsation pursuant to FSMA, and shall carry cut such functions set out in the Operator's
Agreement as the Limited Partnership may require

Matters relating to Directors to the Board of the General Partner such as appointment, resignation and removal
are regulated in accordance with the Shareholders’ agreement and the Articles of Association of the General
Partner

All Partners Distnbutions are made to Partners in proportion to their respective holdings Where available,
distnbutions of the net operating income are to be made quarterly, subject to certain restnctions under the
Partnership Deed
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MINERVA WALBROOK LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Independent auditors and disclosure of information to auditors

So far as the General Partner 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Limited Partnership's
auditors are unaware, and the General Partner has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a
General Partner in order to make itself aware of any relevant audit infoermation, and to establish that the Limited
Partnership's auditors are aware of that information

©On 1 September 2011 PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP resigned as auditors of the Company and Ermnst and
Young LLP were appointed as auditors A resolution to reappaint Ernst and Young LLP as auditors wilt be put
to the annual general meeting

Statement of the General Partner’s Responsibilities

The General Partner is responsible for preparing the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations

Company law as applied to qualifying partnerships by the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 (the
“Regulations”) requires the general partner to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that
law the general partners has prepared the partnership financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under
company law as appled to qualfying partnerships the general partner must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the partnership
and of the profit or loss of the partnership for that period In prepanng these financial statements, the members
are required to

- Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

- Make Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

- State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed Subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

- Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business

The general partner is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the partnership's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the partnership and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by the Regulations They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the partnership and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregulanties

Signed on behalf of

St Swithin's House {General Partner) Limited
Salmaan Hasan

Director

2 December 2011
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MINERVA WALBROOK LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TO MINERVA WALBROOK LIMITED
PARTNERSHIP

We have audited the financial statements of Minerva Walbrook Limited Partnership for the year ended 30 June
2011 which compnses the Profit and Loss Account, the Balance Sheet and the related notes 1 to 13 The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to partnership, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparies
Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the partnership those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the partnership, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of the General Partner and auditors

As explained more fully in the General Partner's Respcnsibilities Statement set out on page 3, the General
partners are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and far view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements In
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropniate to the
qualifying partnership's circumstances and have been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the members, and the overall presentation of the
financial statements |n addition, we read ail the financial and non-financial information 1in the Report of the
General Partners to identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements |f we become aware
of any apparent matenal rmisstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements

. give a true and farr view of the state of the qualifying partnership’s affars as at 30 June 2011 and of its
loss for the year then ended,

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, and

. have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to

qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 as apphed to
gualfying partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion
. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us, or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
certain disclosures of members’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
we have not received all the infformation and explanations we require for our audit

6':"0-\& & ‘r,'\"’"5 L p

Matthew Williams (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Statutory Auditors

London

2 December 2011

Page 4




MINERVA WALBROOK LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

TURNOVER
Rental ncome

COST OF SALES
Property outgoings
NET RENTAL OUTGOINGS

OTHER INCOME
Bank interest receivable

EXPENSES

Administration expenses

NET LOSS FOR THE YEAR

2011

£

2 168,317
2 (1,571,672)
2 (1,403,355)

4 70
(1,403,285)

{1,191,580)

(2,594,865)

All of the Partnership's activities during the year related to conhinuing operations

2010

(516,777)

(516,777)

2

(516,775)

(914,408)

{1,431,183)

There 1s no difference between the loss for the year stated above and their historical cast equivalents

PARTNERS' APPROPRIATION ACCOUNT

General Partner
Limited Partner

2011
£

(519)
(2,594,346)

(2,594,865)

2010
£

(286)
(1,430,897)

{1,431,183)
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MINERVA WALBROOK LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 JUNE 2011

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible fixed assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors

CREDITORS DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY

PARTNERS' ACCOUNTS
Partners' capital and current accounts 8

Revaluation reserve

Partners' funds

2011
Note £ £
5 261,926,296
6 803,490

{17,575,429)

(16,771,939)

245,154,357

278,995,698
9 (33,841,341)

245,154,357

245,154,357

The financial statements on pages 5 to 11 are signed on its behalf by

St Swithin's House (General Partner) Limited

Salmaan Hasan
Director

St Swithin's House {General Partner) Limited

Ivan Ezekiel
Director

2 December 2011

2010

240,231,657

1,338,238

(14,557,670)

(13,219,432}

227,012,225

281,590,563
{54,578,338)

227,012,225

227,012,225

Registered number LP011236
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MINERVA WALBROOK LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

156

Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared under the histonical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, as
modified by the inclusion of investment properties at valuation, with accounting standards currently
applicable in the United Kingdom and the Compantes Act 2006, as applied to qualifying partnerships
by the Partnership (Accounts) Regulations 2008 (the "Regulations”) There have been no new
accounting policies In the penod which have had an impact on the financial statements A summary
of the more important accounting policies i set out below

Measurement convention

Areas reguinng the use of estmates and cntical judgement that may impact on the Limited
Partnership's earnings include the valuation of investment properties, where the General Partner's
has relied upon external valuation carried out by professionally qualified valuers in accordance with
the Appraisal and Valuation Standards of the Royal Inshtution of Chartered Surveyors

Going concern

The Limted Partnership has received a letter of support from its ulhmate parent during the penod,
Minerva Limited, stating that it 1s its current mtention to make avalable such funds as may be
necessary by the Limited Partnership to meet its day-to-day expenses as they fall due for a perod of
12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements For this reason the Members
continue to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the financial statements

Investment property

Investment properties are included n the financial statements at valuaton The aggregate surplus
from onginal cost 1s transferred to a revaluation reserve Any aggregate unrealised deficit from
onginal cost 1s charged to the profit and loss account if, in the opimon of the Partners, the deficit
represents a permanent diminution in value On reahsaton any gan or loss 1s calculated by
reference to the carrying value at the last balance sheet date and s included in the profit and loss
account Any balance in the revaluation reserve 1s transferred to the profit and loss account reserve

In accordance with SSAP 18 (Revised) 'Accounting for investment properties', investment properties
are revalued annually No provision 1s made for depreciation or amorhsation of properties held for
investment purposes The Companies Act 2006 requires all properties to be depreciated, but that
requirement conflicis with the generally accepted principle set out In SSAP 19 (Rewised} The
Partners consider that, as the properties are held for long-term investment, a true and fair view s
gwen by following SSAP 19 (Revised) Depreciation is cnly one of the many factors reflected in the
annual valuation of properties and the amount of depreciation or amortisation which might otherwise
have been charged cannot be separately identified or quantified 1n a meaningful way Additions to
properties in the course of development or refurbishment include the cost of finance and directly
attnbutabte internal and external costs incurred durning the penod of development untl practical
completion

Taxation
The Limited Partnership 1s not subject to taxation Any Partner liable to taxation on its participation

in the Limited Partnership 1s responsible for setthing these labilites independently of the Limited
Partnership
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MINERVA WALBROOK LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.6

1.7

Cash flow statement

The results of the Limited Partnership are fully consolidated wathin the results of Minerva Limited and
the cash flows of the Limited Partnership are included in the consolidated cash flow statement of
that company Consequently the Limited Partnership 1s exempt under the terms of FRS 1 (revised
1996) 'Cash flow statements' from publishing its own cash flow statement

Turnover

Turmover comprises rental Income and recoverable property expenses receivable from tenants
Rental income 1s recognised after treating lease incentives that do not enhance the property as a
revenue reduction and spread evenly over the period to the earlier of the first rent review or the lease

term The Company's turnover i1s denved wholly in the UK from its pnncipal activity

Recoverable property expenses, which are treated as turnover and as property outgoings, are
pnncipally service charge costs and Insurance recoverable from tenants

Benefits received and receivable by the tenant as an incentive to sign an operating lease are
recognised on a straight ine basis over the period until the date the rent 15 expected to be adjusted
to the prevailing market rate

NET RENTAL OUTGOINGS

2011 2010
£ £
TURNOVER
Rental income 168,317 -
168,317
COST OF SALES
Property outgoings (1,502,239) (432,770)
Marketing expenses on properties under develcpment {69,433) {84,007)
(1,571,672) (516,777)
NET RENTAL OUTGOINGS (1,403,355) (516,777)

OPERATING LOSS

Audit fees amounting to £1,200 (2010 £1,200) are borne by a fellow Group undertaking The fees are
reflective of the fact the Limited Partnership 1s part of a large Group No salaries were paid during the

year (2010 £NIL})
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MINERVA WALBROOK LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

OTHER INCOME

2011 2010
£ £
Bank interest receivable 70 2

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
2011 2010
£ £

Freehold

At beginning of year net book value and valuation 240,231,657 126,261,764
Additions 957,642 37,934,631
Surplus on revaluation 20,736,997 76,035,262
At end of year net book value 261,926,296 240,231,657
Amounts included within prepayments and accrued income 473,704 518,343
262,400,000 240,750,000

At end of year valuation

The investment properties were vajued on an open market value basis by CB Richard Ellis Limited,
independent external valuers, as at the period end, In accordance with the current edition of the Appraisal
and Valuation Standards 1ssued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors The historical cost of the
properties at 30 June 2011 was £295,767,637 (2010 £294,809,995) and there was no capitalised interest

included in this cost

DEBTORS

Taxation and social security

Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

2011 2010

£ £
277,826 569,739
51,960 250,156
473,704 518,343
803,490 1,338,238
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MINERVA WALBROCK LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

10.

1

CREDITORS

Amounts falling due within one year
2011 2010
£ £
Amounts owed to group undertaking 14,618,661 10,761,884
Other creditors 2,222,199 2,338,634
Accruals and deferred income 734,569 1,457,152
17,575,429 14,557,670

Amounts due to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand

PARTNERS' CAPITAL AND CURRENT ACCOUNTS

General Limited
Partner Partner Total
£ £ £
At 1 July 2010 (162) 281,590,725 281,590,563
Loss for the year (519) (2,594,346) (2,594,865)
At 30 June 2011 (681) 278,996,379 278,995,698
RESERVES
Revaluation
reserve
£
At 1 July 2010 {54,578,338)
Revaluation surplus in the year 20,736,997
At 30 June 2011 (33,841,341)

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Capital comrmitments contracted, but not provided for, at 30 June 2011 were £82,000 (2010 £301,000)

OWNERSHIP AND CONTROL

The Limited Partnership 1s managed by the General Partner on behalf of the Partners who exercise
control These undertakings were ultimately owned by Minerva Limited (previously Minerva plc)
throughout the period Copies of the consolidated financial statements of Minerva Limited are publicly
avallable See Post Balance Sheet Events (note 13) for details of the change of contral subsequent to
the year end
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MINERVA WALBROOK LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

12.

13.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Limited Partnership 1s a subsidiary undertaking of which 100% of the voting nghts are controlled
within the Group and it has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 8 'Related party disclosures’ are
not to disclose any transactions or balances with entities that are part of the Group

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Jupiter Properties 2011 UK Limited {Jupiter’}, a company jointly owned by funds advised by AREA
Property Partners (UK) Limited (‘Area’) and a subsidiary of DV4 Limited, which 1s advised by Delancey
Real Estate Asset Management Limited ('Delancey’), acquired the entire 1ssued share capital of Minerva
plc following the declaration that its offer was wholly uncenditional on 19 August 2011 Consequently, on
19 September 2011, the bisting of Minerva Shares on the Official List and the admission to trading in
Minerva Shares on the London Stock Exchange's market for Iisted secunties was cancelled On 17
October 2011, Minerva plc was re-registered as a private imited company under section 97 of the
Companies Act 2006
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